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INTRODUCTION

This policy document for West Tytherley is part of the Borough Councils
conbinuing programme; as approved in 1879, for Conservation Area
designations throughout Test Valley. The study describes the village and
its higtory and proposes the desipnation of a Conservation Area. It also
explaine the special planning controls which would result from designa-
tiun.

Conservation of the environment ts one of the most iportant [unctions of
local planning authorities. To be suecessful it must be the concern of all of
18 who value our towns and villages, which have evolved over centuries
and comtain many beautiful and historic areas. Their individual charactar
is due to a highly diverze combination of buildings, trees and spaces.

Historic buildings are at the forefront of comzervation, as a tangible record
of pur architectural and eocial higtory, Sinee 1947 the Secrefary of State
hag compiled Lists of Buildings of Special Architectural or Historie
Interest for each locality. Buildings included on the Statutory List enjoy
legal protection under the Town and Country Planming Acts and are
classified into grades I, IT¥ and II to show their relative importance. In
recent years the Department of the Environment has been progressively
revising the Lists throughout England and Wales. The Revised List for
West Tytherley was approved by the Secretary of State in 1956 when the
number of statutorily listed buildings in the village wag increased sub-
stantially,

The concept of Conservation Areas is a more recend innovation. Prior to
1967 the emphasis was on the preservation of individual buildings as
distinet from areas. The Civic Amenities Act 1967 impoesed = duty on Toeal
planning authorities to ‘determine which parts of their areas were of
gpecial architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of
which it was desivable to pregerve or enthance, and fo designate such areas
as Conservation Areas’. These powers have been expanded and strength-
ened in subsequent Planning Acts and at pregent there are 7,000 Con-
servation Areas in England and Wales; of these nearly 300 are in
Hampshire and 36 in Tesl Valley.
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1o defining areas of special architectural or historic merit there can be no
standard specification as naturally there will e many different kinds. The
boundary of any Conservation Area should reflect the factors which give
a place its unique and ‘special’ character. Thus, significant groups of
buildings, srchitectural style, historic settlement pattern, spaces, trees,
etc., all have to be taken into account following detailed survays and an
examination of historical records. The intention i3 toidentify core areas of
particular interest. This need not includs every single historie building in
the vicinity of the village and does not mean that occasional poorly
designed er ungightly buildings will be excluded if they lie within the core.
Meither will it necessarily include all of a village or the surrounding
countryside, as there are parallel planning policies which protect the
countryside against inappropriate development.

Congervation policies are designed to complement vather than substitute
for other planning policies. This doecument is NOT a village plan or a loeal
plan and therefore is not concerned with the principle of whether develop-
ment talkes place. It will, however, have much to do with the form that any
such development should take, including alterations or extensions to
existing buildings and the protection of trees. Particular attention iz given
to 2uch matters as design, scale, location, use of materials and effect vpon
the strest seene or landscape setting.




THE CHARACTER OF THE VILLAGE
Historical Background

Situated 7 miles north west of Romsey, near the border with Willshire, the
parish of West Tytherley covers a vural area of arable land with some
grazing and woodland. The name Tytherley actually means ‘young wood’,
as the surrounding forest may well have been when the name was
recorded in the Domesday Book, as “Tederleg’.

Evidence of settlament in the area gocs back to the late Bronze Age, with
a socketed spearhead dated between 950 and 700 BC having been found
at the southern end of the village, and ‘Celfic’ fields to the north. At the
time of the Domesday Survey Norman Court was recorded as the property
of Waleran the Huntsman. Norman Courl and West Dean manors
eontinued in the ownership of the Waleran family until the T6Lh century.

5t. Peter's Chureh
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During the late 11th century the church at West Tytherley was a chapel
of Mottisfont, but in the mid-12th century the advowson was granted to
the church of St.Denys in Southampton. Later it was transferred to the
lord of the manor. The site of old St. Peter’s Church is indicated by a slight
platforin inthe old burial pround, and a print of the building in the present
church vestry shows a simple strucinre with nave, chancel, south porch
and a small wooden bell turret at the west end. It continued in use until
1835 when the nave of the new church was opened. A number of fittings
and monuments were transferred to new St. Peter’s, including the black
marble Norman font, and several 17th century memorial slabs to the
Whitehead family. This part of the building is Georgian in charaeter with
a west gallery and some original box pews. The chancel is much later
(1877) and i3 guite different in style - limestone on a brick plinth, with
Bath stone dressings and a red tiled roof. New windows may also have
been. provided to the nave at this time.

Before the 19th century domestic buildings in the village were usually
constructed of local materials, as the cost of imported goods would have
heen very high. The lack of any suitable building stone gave rise to astrong
timber-framed tradition; oak was the preferred material, with wattle and
daub orlath and plaster being used for the infill panels. These panels were
often replaced with brick when its production became widespread at the
end of the medieval period. Chalk eob and flint were also used. Long straw
thatch would have been the usual roofing material - later this may have
heen replaced by plain clay tiles or Welsh slate.

Church Farmhouse is Lhe village’s oldest building, having been bmuilt
¢. 1300, although it has been significantly altered and extended since then.
Brick walls encase a timber-framed core; parts of the roof date back to the
14th century. The farm buildings, =although much later, are also of
interest. The brick barn dates from the mid 18th century, and the cartshed
and stables from ¢. 1800,




The Area Today

Approaching from the open countryside to the south east along the Coach
Road, Arthur Mee, in "The King's England: Hampshire and the Isle of
Wight", deseribed West Tytherley as Iying "lonely and lovely among the
trees.... with the plain 19th century church watching over it from the hill."

The scene has changed relatively little, and the spen appreach along the
Coach Road is a roost significant feature of the village, as is the view back
from St Peter's churchyard. The mid and late 18th century barn and
cartzhed at Church Farm form prominent roadside features.

Beyond the chureh, Coach Road isnarrow and secluded, the older buildings
on the west side set above the level of the lane which is enclosed by banks,
walls and hedges.

Onthe eorner of the Coach Road and Dean Road is Pennyeot. Thisisa17th
century tirber framed building with brick infill pansls and an old plain
tile rocl, a style that can be secn in various forms throughout the village.
Opposite is a tree-lined track which runs west to Norman Court Saw Mills,
and Home Farm. Southerly Cottages and the Garden House date back to
the 16th and 17th centuries, whilst Home Farm consists of mainly 19th
century huildings. To the south, Dean Road climbs gently upwards until
it reaches Nos. 5-9 The Common, a thatehed terrace of late 185th century
almshouses of colour-washed brick.

MNumbers 54 The Common
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Here the view onee again opens out to the south east. There are several
other buildings of local interest along Dean Road, including a good group
of 19th century farm buildings at Poplar Farm, and Farthings Corner, a
thatehed houge whose much altered exterior conceals a timber framed
core which probably dates back to the 15th eentury.

The Black Hovae publie house

North Lane is the main village streef, with the school, village hall, post
office slores and the Black Horse public house loeated here. Thers are good
views from points along the main street towards the ridge on its eastern
gide. The village school opened in 1855. The 0ld School House was builf
in 1844-5 for the Baring family. It iz a brick building, with diaper patterns
in hlue headers, and an old fish-seale tile roof at the front. The cast iron
diamond pattern casement windows are, as is the rest of the house, of g
style not seen elsewhere in the village, though they are found in other
parts of the Test Valley area.




The 01d Reclory, halfway up Rectory Hill, iz well sereaned by trees. [fis
a larpe Georgian symmetrical Lthree storey house of square plan, with
chegmer patferned brickwork and regular sash windows. A footpath
hezide the house leads hack to North Lane across open ground. Halfamile
to the north west is Norman Court, a mediam gized country house of three
storeys, dating from ¢ 1752, with later additions, and now used as
Northaw School. It replaced an earlier medieval Manor house. North
Lame leads on out of Lthe village past a row of pleasant Victorian semi-
detached houses with rustic porches. Beyond are open fields to the north
and east.
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Murnber 28 Morlh Lane and Collarmalkers

Beyond the village store, opposite and bayond the recreation ground, are
several historic buildings of timber framed and/or brick construction,
including the Black Horse Inn, Village Farm and Collarmakers.

Northaw Behool (Nozman Coarth




BOUNDARIES

The Conservation Area boundary is drawn to include the higtorie core of
the village and its landscape setting.

The key to maintaining the character of West Tytherley and enhancing its
environmental guality lies in retaining those features that contribute
towards its unique identity and ensuring that any new development ig
gympathetic in character. Key [eatures are:

@ the relatively clustered nature of the settlement, bordered by open
apriculfural land;

® the importance of the vpen approach trom the south-east, along
The Coach Road, with 5t. Peter’s Church as a local landmark;

® {he small seale character of the main street, with a mix of local
hailding materials and styles;

® important views from the village centre acress open ground to the
east, up to the ridge line;

® significant trees and hedgerows as landseape features throughout
the village.

FURTHER READING

Victoria County History of Hampshire and the Isle of Wight - ed. William
Wright, 1911

Buildings of England series. Hampshire and the Izle of Wight - Nikolaus
PevsnerTavid Lloyd, 15876,

Hampshire Treasures Survey, Volume 9, Test Valley Sonth - Hampshire
County Gouncil, 1934,

The King’s England, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight - Arthur Mee.

History, (Gazetteer and Directory of the County of Hampshire - White,
1878

Willage Farmhouwse




PLANNING POLICIESAND CONTROLS

Planning policies for the Conservation Area aim to preserve and enhanee
its special character. They are complementary 1o existing land use and
countryside policies contained within the South Hampshire Structure
Flan and the Mid Test Drafi Local Flan which provide a detailed and up
to date framework for development decisions affecting West Tytherley.
The latter will soon be superseded by the Test Valley Borough Local Plan,
currently in preparation. The designation of a Conservation Area auto-
matically brings into effect certain additional planning controls which
include:

a) limits on normal permitted development tolerances;
b} restricticns on demolition of buildings and struciures;
¢} restrictions on lelling and other tree work.

Designation brings an assumption that the design of new development
must be sympathetic to and enhance the eharaeter of the area: further-
maore there will be extended opportunities for public comment on proposed
development. You are strongly advizsed to consult the Planning Depart-
ment before any works are undertaken to ANY building, structure or tres.

1. Demolition

Al huildings including walls within a Conservation Area are protected by
law from demolition. The only cxceeptions are ceviain very small or
temporary buildings. Anyone intending to demolish all or part of a
building within a Conservation Area must first apply for consent from the
Borongh Council.

2. Listed Buildings

Buildings which are statutorily listed as being of special architectural or
historic interest by the Sceretary of Btate are additionally profected, and
it should be noted that this applies to inleriors as well ag exteriors. Prior
listed building consent must be obtained from the Borough Council before

any works to alter, extend or demolish any part of & listed building are
commenced. Such works conld inclnde external redecoration, re-reofing,
the alteration of deors and windows, changing rainwater goods, removal
of internal fizinres or structural changes. Permission ig algo reguired for
the erection of emall buildings such as garden sheds within the grounds
of a listed building, or for changes to gates, fences or walls enclosing it.

Scme key points to note when considering repairs or alterations Lo lsted
buildings:

® Traditional repair technignes normally prove more reliable and
mare economic in the long term.

® Repair existing traditional windows, cast iron gutters ete. wherever
pussible to preserve authenticity. Avoid replacement with non-
traditional materials such as uPVC or aluminium windows,
concretetiles, artificial slates or plastic gutters. These would, in any
case, require listed building consent.

® Relain original internal features such as doors, fireplaces, panelling
and plasterwork which are an integral part of a listed building’s
character.

® Do net use damaging cleaning techniques such ag sandhlasting on
old timbers or brickwork. Avoid so-called ‘wonder’ paint or spray
treatments for walls and roofs which are short lived and can actually
cause long term damage by sealing in moizture and preventing
ventilation.

® Ensure that new brickwork 1s a good match with existing and use
lime mortar for careful compatible pointing.

@ Do cengualt the Borough Council for advice.




5. New Development and Alferations fo Non-Listed Buildings

Designation of an area as a Conservation Ares does nol preclude the
possibility of new development within the arsa; but it is important that
new developments should be designed in a scnsitive manmer having
regard to the special character of the area,

Similar considerations apply where alterations or extensions are pro-
posed to existing buildings of local interest or other non-listed properties
in the area. Major threats to the general characier of Conservation Areas
are the many ‘small” alterations to non-listed buildings that can take
place. For example, the use of mass-produced doors and windows in wood
stain or uPVC should be avoided. Although a few minor works are
regarded as ‘permitted development’, and may be carried out without the
need for planning permmission, regulations have recently been strengih-
ened in conservation arcas and, in many cases, lormal consent will be
reguired. Owners should therefore check with the Planning Department
at an early stage when considering works to their property.

Detailed applieations will be required to show the relationship of any
proposal to its site and surroundings to ensure that new development fits
i’ by reflecting traditional building forms and the use of local or compat-
ible materials. Outline applications will not be accepted.

New development should preserve and/or positively enhance the Conser-
vation Avea’s character by:

® reflecting traditional building forms in terms of density, siting,
height, massing and scale;

# using local or tradifional materials, colours and detailing;

® retaining and reinforcing local landscape features such az trees and
hedgerows.

Where developmant involving building work is proposed, the Borough
Council, mindful of the archaeological potential, will engure that
adequate time is allowed for excavation / investigation of selected sites
before and during development and may attach conditions to planning
permission as appropriate.

4. Opportunities to Comunent on Proposed Developments

The Borough Council is required to advertize applications for develop-
ment affeeting a listed building or the character of a Conservation Areain
order to allow opportunities for public comment. Notices are placed in the
Romsey Advertiser and on or near the land to which the application
relates. Twenty-ome days are allowed for the public to inspect the details
of the application and to make representations o the local council.

5. Trees and Landscape Feaiures

In Conservation Areas trees are protected broadly as though they were
suhject to Tree Preservation Orders. The only exceplions are some very
small specimens and cultivated fruit trees. The Borough Counecil must be
nolified at; least six weeks hefore a tree is proposed to be felled, uprooted
or pruned in any way (unless being done in connection with a previously
approved development) 2o that an inspeetion can be carried out.

The relention of trees and hedgerows is generally encouraged, but where
development proposals would involve their remeoval, this should be clearly
indicated as part of any detailed planning application. A landscaping
scheme should include an accurate survey of existing features showing
their location, height, spread and species, together with any new planting.
Not only are there important groups of trees within and adjacent to the
Conservation Area, but there are certain open spaces which contribute
significantly to the character of the village. Because of thisitisimprobable
that any development will be permitted on them. The Borough Counedl
would therefore wish to see them retained and enhanced accordingly.

6. Advertizements

Due to the predeminantly residential nature of West Tytherley only a few
business signs exist in the area. Signs will continue to be kept to a
minimumn and strict eontrols coneerning the display of outdoor advertising
will be applied within the Conservation Area.




ENVIRONMENTAL ENHANCEMENT

In addilion to the legal eonsequences of designation of a Conservation
Area, it is important that action {s taken to preserve and enhance the
character and appearance of the area. [t is not just the buildings which are
important. A number of more general improvements to footpaths,
bridleways, open areas or tree and hedge planting may contribute to the
overall attractivenass of a place. Special financial assistance is available
from central government in cerlain circomstances, However, in the case
of Wesl Tytherley the source of any grant aid is likely to be the Borough
Council or the County Conncil and iz summarised helow:

1} Historie Building Grants

Under the Flanning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
both the Borough Council and the County Council are empowered to
contribute towards the cost of essential repairs fo historic buildings. The
offer of grant-aid is entirely dizeretionary and the amount of prant will be
related to the nature and extent of repairs to be carmied out. Works
regarded as coming within the normal maintenance liability of an owner
are not eligible, but structural repairs, re-roofing, thatching, window
repairg, ete. may well qualify for assistance.

2) Epvironmental Enfancement Grants

The Borough Council and the County Couneil have funds for envirenmen-
tal enhancement projects, which may be initiated by the Parish Couneil,
voluntary groups or individuals. Such work is not Lmited to only the
conservation area, but projects within the core sarea are certainly encour-
aged. Sultable works include tree, shrub and hedge planting or replace-
neni, the removal of eyesores, the provision of appropriate surfacing,
fencing, walling and street furniture and clearance of waterways and
footpaths.

1¢

FURTHER INFORMATION

Advice and information on legal requirements and development matters
can be obtained from the Ares Planning Officer at the Planning Depart-
ment, Council Offices, Duttong Read, Romesey (Tel: Romsey 515117
Advice on historic building work, repairs, details of grants and landscaps
matters are available from the Design and Congervation Seetion of the
Planning Departmeant, at the same address.

Mumbers 54 Morth Lane




APPENDIX1

Trees in Conservation Areas

The Town and Country Flanning Act 1930 (Sections 211-214) requires
anyones who proposces to top,Jop, uproot or wilfully damage or destroy’ a
iree in the Conservation Area o give gix weelis notice to Test Valley
Borough Council. This requirement is intended to give the Borough
Council a final opportunity to serve a Tree Preservation Order (TPCH
before work is commenced. Work may not be cormmenced within the six
week period without consent.

If the work to a tres in the Conservation Area is begun without the six
weeks nolice, the person carryingout the work becomes liable for penalties
similar to those for contraventions of a Tree Preservation Order and a
similar duty toreplant. Ifthe authorised work is not completed within two
yvears of giving notice of consent, further notice must be given. The
particulars of 2 notice are recorded by the Council in a register open to
public inspection. Notica' forms are available {rom the Planning Depart-
ment of the Borough Coungil.

The zix week rule does not apply to trees thal are dying, dead or dangerous,
or where works are necessary for the prevention or abatement of a
nuisance. Except In an emergency, however, a minimum of five days
should be given fo the aulhority to decide whether to dispense with a
requirement to replant with a free of appropriate size or species.

There are certain calegories of trees that are exempt from muost Tree
Preservation or Conservation Area conlrols; thege are summarised below.

Main exemptions
11 trecs of less than 75mm in diameter, 1om above ground level or 200mm
where the act is carried out to imprave the growth of other frees (exeepl

Woodland Tree Preservation Ordersh

17} trees cultivated for fruil production that are growing or standing in an
orchard for garden;

iif) trees eut down in accordance with a forestry dedication covenant or
Forestry Commission plan;

iv) trees et down by a statutory undertaker (such as British Telecom or
river authority): and

v) trees which need w be felled fo enable development to be carried out
following the granting of planning permission.

4 Churchyard







